
 
 
 
 
 

Page 1 of 2 
 

Agenda for the 

Allendale Charter Township Board Meeting 

Monday, September 13, 2021, 7:00pm 

Members Present: 

Members Absent: 

Guests Present: 

 
Meeting called to order  

 
 Invocation given by Bruce Zeinstra 
 Pledge of Allegiance  
 Approve Agenda 
 Consent Agenda 

o Approval of the August 23, 2021 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
o Bills 
o Interim Bills 

 For information 
o Financial Report 
o Minutes of the August 16, 2021 Planning Commission Meeting 
o July Sheriff’s Department Monthly Report 

 Public Hearings 
o Truth in Taxation 

 Public Comments 
 Guest Speakers  

o Ottawa County Update- Commissioner Greg DeJong 
o Business Registration Program Update 
o Mid-year Budget Amendments 

 Action Items 
o Resolution 2021-21: Truth in Taxation: Millage Rate Resolution 

 County Checklist 
 2021 L-4029 

o Mid-year Budget Amendments 
o Assistant Township Administrator 
o Human Resources Director 
o MAAO Assessor  
o Wage Transition Budget Amendments 

 Discussion Items 
o Rental Housing Ordinance & Fee Schedule Update 



 
 
 
 
 

Page 2 of 2 
 

 Public Comments 
 Board Comments 
 Future Agenda Items 
 Closed Session – Discussion of Pending Litigation with Legal Counsel 
 Adjournment 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Our Wi-Fi connection may be used to access the Board Information Packet: 

• Account: ACT_Guest 
• Password: ACTguest 
• File location: www.allendale-twp.org  Agendas and Minutes  Agendas: Township Board 

 

http://www.allendale-twp.org/


Page 1 of 4 
 

PROPOSED 
PROCEEDINGS OF THE ALLENDALE 
TOWNSHIP BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

AUGUST SESSION-2nd DAY 
 

The Allendale Township Board of Trustees met at the Allendale Township 
Auditorium, located at 6676 Lake Michigan Drive, on Monday, August 23, 2021, at 
7:00 p.m. and was called to order at 7:01 by Mr. Elenbaas. 
 
Present: Ms. Vander Veen; Mr. Murillo; Ms. Hansen; Ms. Kraker; Mr. 
Zeinstra; Mr. Vander Wall and Mr. Elenbaas. (7) 
 
Absent: None (0) 
 
Staff and Guest Present: Bob Sullivan, Legal Counsel; Kevin Yeomans, 
Project Coordinator; Mary Cook, Library Director; and Greg DeJong, Ottawa 
County Commissioner.  
 
Mr. Zeinstra pronounced the invocation. 
 
Mr. Elenbaas led in the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag of the United States of 
America. 

 
BOT 21-143 Ms. Vander Veen moved to approve the agenda of today with the following 

amendments: add Commissioner Greg DeJong as guest speaker, eliminate 
“First Reading” from Ordinance 2021-02: Emergency Services Cost Recovery 
Ordinance Action Item. The motion passed. 

 
BOT 21-144 Ms. Kraker moved to approve the following Consent Resolutions: 
 

1. To approve the Minutes of the August 9, 2021 Board of Trustees meeting. 
 

2. To approve the general claims in the amount of $591,859.88 and the 
interim payments of $9,253.66 as presented by the summary report for 
August 23, 2021. The motion passed as shown by the following votes:  

 
YEAS: Ms. Vander Veen, Mr. Murillo, Ms. Hansen, Ms. Kraker, Mr. Zeinstra, 
Mr. Vander Wall and Mr. Elenbaas. (7) 

 NAYS: None (0) 
  



Page 2 of 4 
 

 
Items Received for Information 

 
1. Financial Report 

 
2. Minutes of the August 2, 2021 Planning Commission Meeting 
 
3. Fire Department- July Monthly Report 
 
Public Hearings  
 
1. Ordinance 2021-02: Emergency Services Cost Recovery Ordinance 

 
Mr. Elenbaas opened the public hearing at 7:04 p.m. 
No comments were received. 

BOT 21-145 Mr. Elenbaas moved to close public comment. The motion passed. 
 
Public Comments and Communications - None 

 
BOT 21-146 Mr. Elenbaas moved to close public comment. The motion passed. 
 
 Guest Speakers 
 

Commissioner Greg DeJong provided an update regarding the Ottawa County 
Public Health mandates, including his stance on the mask requirement orders. 
Commissioner DeJong distributed a written statement titled “Where I Stand on 
the Ottawa County Mask Mandate” some of which stated: “Who knows their child 
better than their parents, guardian or your child’s pediatrician? Regarding 
wearing of masks, every parent should have the right to protect their child and I 
support that. Equally, if you don’t feel good about your child wearing a mask, you 
should have that right, and I support that also. I believe in respecting parents’ 
rights no matter what their point of view is regarding this issue. We need to find 
middle ground, compromise, respect for each other, and show some common 
decency for each other.”  
Several Board members had questions and comments.  
 
Mary Cook, Library Director, provided an update on the Library including: a brief 
introduction and background of herself; June 1st the library opened up after a long 
bout of limited services due to Covid; modified hours; patron counts; circulation 
stats; program participation; Library Advisory Board meetings overview; and fines 
and fees schedule.    
Several Board members had questions and comments.  
 



Page 3 of 4 
 

 Action Items 
   

BOT 21-147 Mr. Vander Wall moved to adopt and authorize the Clerk and Supervisor to 
sign Ordinance 2021-02: Emergency Services Cost Recovery Ordinance; an 
ordinance to protect the public health, safety and general welfare of persons 
and property within Allendale Charter Township, through the assessment and 
recovery of the expenses incurred in providing emergency assistance for fire 
services. The motion passed. 

  
BOT 21-148 Ms. Vander Veen moved to approve and authorize the Clerk and Supervisor 

to sign Resolution 2021-19: Emergency Services Cost Recovery Resolution; 
establishing charges for Fire Department Services as outlined in Ordinance 
2021-02.  The motion passed. 

   
BOT 21-149 Ms. Hansen moved to approve and authorize the Clerk to prepare and sign 

four (4) Farmland and Open Space Preservation Program applications, 
commonly known as PA 116, submitted by H. Walcott Family Farms, for 
parcel numbers: 70-09-19-300-018, 70-09-20-100-013; 70-09-32-200-005, 
and 70-09-32-200-006. The motion passed. 

 
 Mr. Elenbaas introduced Ordinance 2021-03: Great lakes Franchise 

Agreement for its first reading.  
 
BOT 21-150 Mr. Vander Wall moved to approve and authorize the Clerk and Supervisor to 

sign Resolution 2021-20: Schedule Truth in Taxation Public Hearing; 
establishment of a public hearing date to consider a proposed increase of 
0.0598 mills in the operating tax millage rate to be levied.  The motion 
passed. 

 
 Discussion Items 
 

Ms. Hansen presented the board with the current job description for the Human  
Resource Manager position. She indicated Lydale Weaver, Human Resource 
Specialist, has been fulfilling many of the duties of the Human Resource Manager 
for numerous months. She highlighted many accomplishments Mr. Weaver has 
achieved in his time here as well as upcoming goals. Ms. Hansen is requesting the 
board to consider supporting a promotion for Mr. Weaver. She will be bringing a 
letter of recommendation to the board at the next meeting.  
 
Mr. Elenbaas informed the board of the increased police needs for our 



Page 4 of 4 
 

community. He is investigating ways to increase the policing staff for the 
township. Statistics show many of the calls for police services fall within the 
parameters of student housing jurisdictions. Mr. Elenbaas is researching the 
possibility of establishing a special assessment tax for student housing 
jurisdictions to help alleviate the costs of adding the necessary additional police 
officers.  
 
Public Comments and Communications- None 
 

BOT 21-151 Mr. Elenbaas moved to close public comment. The motion passed. 
 

 Board Comments: 
 
1. Mr. Elenbaas informed the board that the Knowlton House Museum is 

seeking to add a historical sign and to possibly update landscaping around 
the museum. The Knowlton House has designated funds they plan to use 
to accomplish this.  
 

2. Ms. Vander Veen thanked everyone who contributed to the very 
successful 2021 Concert in the Park Series.  

 
BOT 21-152 Mr. Vander Wall moved to adjourn the meeting at 8:19 p.m. The motion 

passed.  
 
 
 
                            _________________________     _________________________ 

Jody L. Hansen, Clerk Adam Elenbaas, Supervisor 
Of the Township of Allendale Of the Township of Allendale 

 
 
 

















ALLENDALE CHARTER TOWNSHIP 

PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

August 16, 2021 

7:00 p.m. 

 

1) Meeting called to order 

2) Roll Call 

Present: Adams, Zuniga, Schut, Kelley, Zeinstra, Longcore 

Absent: Westerling 

Staff Present: Greg Ransford 

Other Guests Present: Merwyn Koster, Don De Groot 

3) Received for information: No information received 

4) Motion by Mr. Zuniga to approve the August 02, 2021, Planning Commission Meeting Minutes with 

the correction to clarify under item 7B that Chairman Longcore did not speak to the bank, that it was the 

applicant who had spoken to the bank. Seconded by Zeinstra. Approved: 6-0 

5) Motion by Mr. Longcore to switch items 9 and 10 on the agenda for the convenience of those present 

and approve the August 02, 2021, Planning Commission Agenda. Seconded by Mr. Schut. Approved: 6-0 

6) Public Comments for non-public hearing items: 

Mr. Longcore opened the public comment section for non-public hearing items. No comments were 

made, and he closed the public comment section. 

7) Public Hearings - None 

8) Site Plans to Review - None 

9) New Business 

A. Biltmore LLC/ 52nd and 56th Avenue Map Amendment Request- Seeking to rezone 70-09-25-300-050 & 

70-09-25-300-060 from R-1 to R2 

Mr. De Groot introduced the request to rezone the property located at 10460 56th Avenue and 10681 

52nd from an R1 to R2.  

Mr. De Groot acknowledged that the developments to the North and South of the subject parcel have 

been developed with lot sizes and lot widths similar to the R-2 zone, impact to neighboring properties 

will be compatible. 

Mr. Ransford, for the record, briefly explained where they were at in this process. He expressed that it is 

not illegal to recommend something contrary to the Master Plan, of course there is more to it than just 

the map that comes into play. Mr. Ransford proceeded to say they have noted in their first memorandum 

and highlighted a couple bullet points for low density that corresponds for the R1 zone, and the 

moderate residential density corresponds with the requested R2 zone. The applicant has already 

responded to the rezoning criteria. 



Mr. Longcore asked what are the densities of the properties to the North and South and what the 

proposed density of this plan is. Mr. De Groot replied that it looks to be about the same. That he had put 

together a conceptual plan and is less than 2 units per acre, moderate density has a max of 2.9 so they 

are under the allowed space. It is very comparable to the surrounding areas. Mr. Ransford clarified that 

Medium Density has a maximum density of 4.35 units per acre and low density has a maximum of 2.9. 

Consensus of the Commissioners was that this request makes sense and would fit with the surrounding 

area. The Commission directed Mr. Ransford to schedule the public hearing upon receipt of the density 

revisions from Mr. De Groot. 

10) Old Business 

A. Master Plan 

Mr. Ransford reviewed some of the changes that had been made to the Master Plan Documents and 

Future Land Use Map. 

Mr. Longcore brought up on the map the southeast corner of LMD and 60th. He expressed how there is 

already a bank, auto zone and dentist office and that area should be red for General Commercial. 

Country View Dr. should remain consistent with residential all along the street. 68th and LMD to the West 

Walgreens and the soon to be Mr. Burger should also be commercial.  

Commissioners discussed adding more Moderate Density to the Future Land Use Map to align with 

neighboring properties. They also stated that in order to do this they would need to confer with DPW 

regarding future plans for water and sewer. Specifically, consensus was that from Valley View to 74th Ave 

could be Moderate Density.  

Commissioners would like to see the Rural Estate zone along 78th south of Lake Michigan Dr. connected 

along 78th to the Rural Estate zone north of Buchannan.  

Mr. Zeinstra spoke on the mobile home park at the end of Pingree and how part of it has been turned 

into moderate density and suggested to keep it all yellow for Medium Density. Mr. Zuniga brought up 

wanting to also change the Future addition of the mobile home park to yellow as well, Mr. Zeinstra 

agreed. Mr. Ransford then expressed wanting to double check the dash line does in fact represent the 

expansion of the park, and if it does not then he will keep it white designating the Agricultural Zone, 

Commissioners agreed with that statement. 

Mr. Adams asked Mr. Ransford if there was a percentage overall, based on this version of the map, of 

each one of the zonings or classifications in the Township. Mr. Ransford replied that we don’t have that 

right now, but the county can run that and get the numbers. Mr. Adams then asked Mr. Ransford about 

planning tools, where should the township be at for percentages, etc. Mr. Ransford answered that there 

used to be that mindset but with technology changing and growing it is not really desired or as necessary 

as once thought. What you shape your community into is up to you. Commissioners would like to know 

the percentages of commercial, residential and industrial, etc. 

Rich Street was pointed out in the Industrial Zone to connect the zone from 56th to 48th and having them 

all designated gray. It was also brought up on how to designate the pump station and the Waste Water 

Treatment Plant as they are, at the moment located in residentially zoned districts.  

Mr. Zeinstra inquired about a bike trail map and asked on whether or not it would be included in the 

Master Plan.  



Direction was provided to Planner Ransford to update the master plan map according to the suggestions 

provided by the Commissioners. 

11) Public Comments 

Mr. Longcore opened the second public comments section for non-public hearing items. No comments 

were made, and Mr. Longcore closed the public comments section. 

12) Township Board Reports 

Mr. Zeinstra reported that the Board received information from the Human Resources Department, 

Safety Department and the DPW. The Board approved the request to modify the job description for the 

project coordinator to an assistant administrator and the Tentative Preliminary Plat for Dewpointe West.  

13) Commissioner and Staff Comments 

Mr. Ransford reported on the question of a development going in without approval and had received an 

email from Steve Kushion that is was excavation of a pond for grandkids to fish out of, and that there 

were no alarms for this project. 

Mr. Schut had a question about Kennedy Lake sidewalk in the wrong spot and if they looked into that yet 

and Mr. Ransford responded that he has reached out to the Zoning Administrator, but has not heard 

back yet. 

14) Adjourn 

Mr. Longcore adjourned the meeting at 8:16 p.m. 

 

Next meeting Tuesday, September 07, 2021, at 7:00 p.m. 

Planning Commission Minutes respectfully submitted by Natasha Shepard 



  

County of Ottawa 
 

Steve A. Kempker 
Sheriff 

 
Valerie L. Weiss 

Undersheriff 
       
 
 

Sheriff’s Office 
 Headquarters/Administration Correctional Facility 
 12220 Fillmore Street 12130 Fillmore Street     
 West Olive, Michigan   49460 West Olive, Michigan   49460 
 (616) 738-4000 or (888) 731-1001 (616) 786-4140 or (888) 731-1001 
 Fax:  (616) 738-4062 Fax:  (616) 738-4099 

 
 
 
 
 
Date:   08-23-2021 
 
To:      Allendale Township Supervisor Adam Elenbaas 
 
From:  Sgt. Cal Keuning 
 
RE:     Monthly Report (July 2021) 
 
 
The Sheriff’s Office during the month of July responded to 450 calls for service. Looking back at 
July 2020, the Sheriff’s Office responded to 414 calls for service.  
 
Allendale Township Basic EMT and MFR units, with the assistance of general road patrol 
responded to 37 medicals and 6 personal injury accidents in Allendale Township. Looking back 
at July 2020, the Sheriff’s Office responded to 53 medicals. 
 
Deputies made a total of 55 traffic contacts and issued 73 total violations.  
 
July 4th Parade and Fireworks: 
The parade moved to the Allendale Public School Campus this year off Pierce St. Starting from 
the administrative building, the parade route went past several schools and ended near Pine 
Valley Dr. The fireworks were also held at the same location on the 4th.  
 

    



 
Allendale Summer School at the Middle School: 
Deputy Ortman and Sgt. Keuning brought their police cars to the Allendale Summer School event 
and discussed with the students and teachers what a police officer does and the education it 
takes to become a police officer. The students and teachers tried on equipment, sat in the 
cruiser, and a show and tell with a teacher being “arrested”. The students and teachers asked 
many questions about the law enforcement profession. Allendale Fire Department also took part 
in one of the days where the students enjoyed spraying water from the fire hose. 
 
 

                           
 
 
 
 
 
 
Thank you 
 
 
Sgt. Cal Keuning 
 

 

 



Total Number of Calls

January February March April May June July August September October November December
2018 418 397 380 412 431 402 380 413 425 457 396 356
2019 400 356 322 420 396 405 435 440 501 501 425 376
2020 366 450 300 290 389 410 414 500 458 458 454 374
2021 396 395 463 416 516 433 450

Total Tickets by Month

January February March April May June July August September October November December
2018 58 58 89 72 53 67 44 75 76 57 55 39

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

Allendale Township Calls for Service

2018

2019

2020

2021



2019 67 53 95 86 34 56 76 116 102 195 99 80
2020 84 151 78 33 64 68 72 93 70 63 63 72
2021 70 40 66 79 85 116 73

Traffic Crashes 

January February March April May June July August September October November December
2018 42 39 28 34 26 32 24 27 32 55 39 30
2019 62 49 32 31 20 26 29 30 30 65 70 45
2020 44 55 22 14 28 15 18 23 33 31 49 37
2021 37 29 28 27 30 35 28

Allendale Township Traffic Crashes

0

50

100

150

200

250

Allendale Township Tickets

2018

2019

2020

2021



Medical Calls

January February March April May June July August September October November December
2018 63 50 48 58 63 60 66 63 66 58 59 70
2019 54 52 55 58 66 66 53 61 67 65 50 61
2020 58 57 49 44 41 43 53 45 42 54 55 42
2021 46 32 48 41 59 35 37

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

Allendale Township Traffic Crashes

2018

2019

2020

2021

60

70

80

Allendale Township Medical Calls



Calls of Interest 2021

January February March April May June July August September October November December
B & E's 7 4 1 9 4 1 5
Larcenies 8 6 6 9 12 8 7
Shoplifting 0 1 1 1 0 2 0
Mental 6 2 11 5 9 11 13
Civil 6 11 8 8 6 12 10
Assaults 4 6 3 1 3 4 6
Domestic 28 22 26 15 27 31 23
Animal 18 18 15 14 10 18 17
Alarms 4 7 9 8 6 7 10
Traffic 26 34 38 41 48 37 32
Narcotics 3 2 3 1 2 8 2

Calls of Interest 2020

0

10

20

30

40

50
2018

2019

2020

2021



January February March April May June July August September October November December
B & E's 2 1 2 1 5 3 2 10 3 3 2 6
Larcenies 6 6 2 7 9 8 12 14 18 19 15 8
Shoplifting 1 0 1 0 1 1 0 0 1 1 0 0
Mental 8 10 7 8 2 5 6 10 5 7 10 7
Civil 9 8 9 7 12 12 6 12 12 6 6 6
Assaults 4 3 2 4 2 4 4 3 1 7 0 0
Domestic 15 14 11 9 19 24 30 20 24 19 23 17
Animal 10 18 8 8 20 11 22 15 15 10 1 12
Alarms 6 8 7 12 6 7 8 6 6 14 8 6
Traffic 40 35 30 23 30 39 38 34 35 30 43 22
Narcotics 2 4 4 2 2 0 0 6 2 5 4 2



























  
 RESOLUTION 2021-21 
 TRUTH IN TAXATION: MILLAGE RATE- 2021    
 

WHEREAS, the Township Board of the Charter Township of Allendale, Ottawa County, Michigan, held 
a public hearing on September 13, 2021 to receive testimony and public comments on the issue of whether 
or not to levy an "additional millage rate" of 0.0598 mills, pursuant to the Resolution of the Township Board, 
dated August 23, 2021; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Township Board's resolution of August 23, 2021 was duly published by the Township 
Clerk in accordance with the requirements of the Truth in Taxation Law; and 
 

WHEREAS, it appears to be in the best interest of the Township to levy an additional millage rate of 
0.0598 mills. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, be it hereby resolved that the Township Board of Allendale Charter Township, 
Ottawa County, Michigan does hereby approve the levy of an additional millage rate of 0.0598 mills, 
pursuant to the requirements of the Truth in Taxation Law and does hereby establish the 2021 Allendale 
Charter Township millage rate as follows: 

1. Allocated, Operating Millage – 2.7422 and as delineated on the attached L-4029 2021 Tax Rate 
Request Form, pursuant to the requirements of State law, and instructs Supervisor Elenbaas and 
Clerk Hansen to sign the aforementioned form. 

 
 
YEAS:    
 
NAYS:   
 
ABSENT:  
 
Resolution declared adopted on________________, 2021 
  
 
______________________________  ________________________________ 
Jody L. Hansen     Adam Elenbaas 
Allendale Charter Township Clerk   Allendale Charter Township Supervisor 
 
 

I, the undersigned, duly qualified and acting Township Clerk of the Charter Township of Allendale, 
Ottawa County, Michigan, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of the resolution 
adopted by the Township Board at a regular meeting of the Township Board held on the 13th day of 
September 2021.  I do further hereby certify that public notice of said meeting was given pursuant to and in 
full compliance with Michigan Act 267 of 1976, as amended, and that the minutes of said meeting were kept 
and will be or have been made available by said act. 
 
 
Dated:  September 13, 2021                                                      ____  
       Jody L. Hansen, Township Clerk 



OTTAWA COUNTY 2021 CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE 

 
Our Tax Authority has completed the following steps as required by M.C.L .211.24e (Truth in Taxation) 
 

   A separate Truth-in-Taxation hearing is not necessary.  Our Tax Authority complies with Sec. 16 

of the Uniform Budgeting and Accounting Act (M.C.L. 141.436).  Notice, advertising and print size 

must conform to stated requirements. (M.C.L. 141.412) 

 and  

 Our meeting was completed by October 1
st
.  *Date of meeting was________________________. 

OR 
 Our Board, or Commission, or Council has met and adopted a resolution proposing an additional 

operating millage rate and proposing a hearing date. (M.C.L. 211.24e, subsection 7) 

 and 

 Our Board, or Commission, Council or Authority has published a hearing notice and posted the 

same at the principal office of our taxing unit.  This notice contained the proposed additional 

millage rate, the percentage increase in operating revenue and the percentage increase over the 

preceding year if not approved which would be generated from permitted ad valorem tax levies 

and the Notice was published at least 6 days before the hearing date. (M.C.L. 211.24e, subsections 6 & 

9) 

 and 

 Our Board, or Commission, Council or Authority held a public hearing pursuant to the hearing 

notice.  (M.C.L. 211.24e, subsection 6)        *Date of meeting was_________________________. 
 and 

 Not more than 10 days after the public hearing, our Board or Commission or Council has passed a 

resolution adopting additional millage which does not exceed that which appeared in the notice 

published at least 7 days earlier. (M.C.L. 211.24e, subsection 8).   

OR 

 Our Tax Authority is exempt from M.C.L. 211.24e because we levied 1 mill or less in the 

concluding fiscal year for operating purposes. 

OR 

 A Truth-in-Taxation hearing was not necessary because we will not be levying an operating levy 

which is larger than the base tax rate. 

 

Our Taxing Authority has verified any Debt Levy being requested on the Tax Rate Request Form(L4029) 

 

 We are not requesting a debt levy  
 

 We are requesting a debt levy, and have included a report or other document showing the amount 

of principle and interest that the requested debt levy is intended to retire. 

 

 

 NAME OF TAX UNIT     
 

 BOARD, COUNCIL OR COMMISSION: 

 Clerk or Secretary (Signature)         

 

       Print or Type Name             

 

 Chairperson, Mayor, 

 President or Supervisor (Signature)        

 

        Print or Type Name             
 

 Dated this        day of         , 2021. 
Please return to the Ottawa County Equalization Director with the L-4029 form. 

tvanbennekom
Typewriter

tvanbennekom
Typewriter
X

tvanbennekom
Typewriter
September 13, 2021

tvanbennekom
Typewriter
ALLENDALE CHARTER TOWNSHIP

tvanbennekom
Typewriter
JODY HANSEN

tvanbennekom
Typewriter
ADAM ELENBAAS

tvanbennekom
Typewriter
September

tvanbennekom
Typewriter
14th







Fund Name: Allendale Historical Society Fund Date:
Department Number: N/A Budget Entry #:

Department Name: N/A Amendment #:
Requested by:

Original Budget Prior Amendments This Amendment Revised Budget
Garden Club - Plant Sales $0.00 $0.00

Private Donations $0.00 $0.00
Door Entrance Donations $0.00 $0.00

Fund Raisers $0.00 $0.00
Fund Raiser - Furnace $0.00 $0.00

Donations - Garden Club $0.00 $0.00
Dues $0.00 $0.00

Transfer In $0.00 $0.00
TOTAL REVENUES: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

EXPENDITURES:
150Th Book Sales $0.00

Interest $50.00 $50.00
Endowment fund interest $0.00

Private Donations $0.00
Fund Raisers $0.00

Dues $0.00
Transfer In $0.00

Postage $0.00
Supplies $0.00

Printing & Publishing $0.00
Miscellaneous $0.00

150Th Book Sales $0.00
ENDOWMENT FUND INTEREST $0.00

Private Donations $0.00
Fund Raisers $0.00

Dues $0.00
Postage $0.00
Supplies $50.00 $50.00

Contracted Services $0.00
Printing & Publishing $0.00

Electricity $725.00 $725.00
Heating Fuel $600.00 $200.00 $800.00

Miscellaneous $100.00 $100.00 $200.00
150Th Book Sales $0.00

Interest $0.00
ENDOWMENT FUND INTEREST $0.00

Private Donations $0.00
Fund Raisers $0.00

Dues $0.00
Transfer In $0.00

Postage $0.00
Supplies $0.00

Contracted Services $0.00
Water Cost $0.00

Seminars $0.00
Dues $0.00

Printing & Publishing $0.00
Electricity $0.00

Heating Fuel $0.00
Maintenance $0.00

Miscellaneous $0.00
New Equipment $0.00

Garden Club - Plant Sales $0.00
Interest $0.00

Private Donations $0.00
Transfer In $0.00

Salaries $0.00
Employers Fica $0.00

Supplies $0.00
Contracted Services $0.00

Miscellaneous $0.00
New Equipment $0.00

Transfer Out $0.00
TOTAL EXPENDITURES: $1,475.00 $0.00 $350.00 $1,825.00

Revenue Over/(Under) Expenditures ($1,475.00) $0.00 ($350.00) ($1,825.00)

Description

Other

Approved/Denied?

Budget Amendment Request



Fund Name: Cemetery Improvement Fund Date:
Department Number: N/A Budget Entry #:

Department Name: N/A Amendment #:
Requested by:

Original Budget Prior Amendments This Amendment Revised Budget
Cemetery Lots $5,000.00 $8,000.00 $13,000.00

Interest $350.00 $350.00
Property Rental $200.00 $200.00

Transfer In $0.00
TOTAL REVENUES: $5,550.00 $0.00 $8,000.00 $13,550.00

EXPENDITURES:
Audit $250.00 $250.00

Contracted Services $0.00
Supplies $0.00

Administration $10.00 $10.00
Cemetery Computer Mapping $0.00

Miscellaneous $0.00
Property Purchased $0.00

Capital expenditures $0.00
Principal Paid $0.00
Interest Paid $0.00

TOTAL EXPENDITURES: $260.00 $0.00 $0.00 $260.00
Revenue Over/(Under) Expenditures $5,290.00 $0.00 $8,000.00 $13,290.00

Description

Other

Approved/Denied?

Budget Amendment Request



Fund Name: Rental Administration Fund Date:
Department Number: N/A Budget Entry #:

Department Name: N/A Amendment #:
Requested by:

Original Budget Prior Amendments This Amendment Revised Budget
RENTAL INSPECTIONS $36,985.00 $36,985.00

CERT OF COMPLIANCE $31,440.00 $31,440.00
LANDLORD RENTAL FINES $200.00 $200.00

Interest $100.00 $100.00
Transfer In $15,000.00 $15,000.00

TOTAL REVENUES: $83,725.00 $0.00 $0.00 $83,725.00

EXPENDITURES:
Salaries $53,235.00 $53,235.00

Life Insurance - Employer $65.00 $65.00
Disability Insurance $120.00 $130.00 $250.00

In Lieu Of Health Insurance $500.00 $500.00
Employers Fica $4,111.00 $4,111.00

EMPLOYER'S 401(A) $3,194.00 $3,194.00
Employers Health Insurance $15,000.00 $15,000.00

MPLOYEE HEALTH ASSISTANCE PROGRAM $4,000.00 $4,000.00
Postage $0.00

Administration $2,642.00 $2,642.00
Contracted Services $1,500.00 $1,500.00

Seminars $3,000.00 $3,000.00
Gas & Oil $500.00 $500.00

COMPUTER CONTRACTED SERVICES $2,375.00 $2,375.00
Miscellaneous $300.00 $300.00
Capital Outlay $0.00

TOTAL EXPENDITURES: $90,542.00 $0.00 $130.00 $90,672.00
Revenue Over/(Under) Expenditures ($6,817.00) $0.00 ($130.00) ($6,947.00)

Description

Other

Approved/Denied?

Budget Amendment Request



Fund Name: General Fund Date: 5/24/2021
Department Number: Budget Entry #:

Department Name: ALL Amendment #:
Requested by:

Original Budget Prior Amendments This Amendment Revised Budget
Liquor License $750.00 $750.00

Zoning Compliance Permits $1,000.00 $200.00 $1,200.00
Special Use Permits $500.00 $1,000.00 $1,500.00

Charge For Zoning Change $1,000.00 $600.00 $1,600.00
OTHER FEDERAL GRANTS $14,560.00 $14,560.00

Other Grants $70,000.00 $70,000.00
Metro Act $11,000.00 $261.00 $11,261.00

Tallmadge Library Contribution $105,000.00 $2,762.00 $107,762.00
Miscellaneous Reimbursements $2,300.00 $2,300.00

Misc. Income $1,000.00 $331.00 $1,331.00
Charge For Site Plan Review $1,000.00 $1,000.00

Grave Openings $15,000.00 $5,000.00 $20,000.00
Ordinance Fines $5,000.00 ($3,900.00) $1,100.00

Interest $20,000.00 ($18,000.00) $2,000.00
Hall Rental Income $3,000.00 ($2,000.00) $1,000.00
PAVILION RENTAL $1,000.00 $700.00 $1,700.00

Sale Of Assets $9,000.00 $9,000.00
Veteran's Day ($75.00) ($75.00)

Donations - Park $1,800.00 $1,800.00
DONATIONS - SUMMER READING PGM $500.00 ($500.00) $0.00

Reimbursement Fire Protection $60,000.00 $30,000.00 $90,000.00
Grants/Foundations $207.00 $207.00

TOTAL REVENUES: $0.00 $115,996.00

EXPENDITURES:
Township Board

Contracted Services 2,800.00 2,800.00
Seminars $10,000.00 (2,800.00) 7,200.00

Printing & Publishing $4,500.00 500.00 5,000.00
Miscellaneous $1,500.00 (500.00) 1,000.00

Supervisor
Seminars $1,200.00 (320.00) 880.00

Cell Phone 320.00 320.00
PROCESS/PROGRAM IMP $10,000.00 (3,842.60) 6,157.40

Elections
Salaries $37,000.00 (36,000.00) 1,000.00

Audit
Auditor Consultant $2,000.00 (1,000.00) 1,000.00

Audit $10,000.00 (2,000.00) 8,000.00
Assessor

Contracted Services $80,000.00 (60,000.00) 20,000.00
Dues $1,200.00 (510.00) 690.00

COMPUTER CONTRACTED SERVICES $7,000.00 (2,868.00) 4,132.00
Clerk

Deputy Clerk $6,500.00 500.00 7,000.00
General Office

Salaries $125,969.00 4,100.00 130,069.00
Contracted Services $13,000.00 3,000.00 16,000.00

COMPUTER CONTRACTED SERVICES $45,000.00 41,844.00 86,844.00
Miscellaneous $5,000.00 (257.40) (3,000.00) 1,742.60

Buildings & Grounds
Flowers/Shrubs/Trees $200.00 120.00 320.00

Telephone $9,000.00 1,500.00 10,500.00
Miscellaneous $500.00 1,000.00 1,500.00
Capital Outlay $15,000.00 (3,000.00) 12,000.00

Budget Amendment Request



BUILDING IMP-FIRE 399,000.00 399,000.00
Cemetery

Insurance $400.00 10.00 410.00
Maintenance $2,000.00 (10.00) 1,990.00

Fire Department
Fire Fighter Medical $24,000.00 (2,000.00) 22,000.00

Fuel for 180 500.00 500.00
COMPUTER CONTRACTED SERVICES $7,000.00 (1,000.00) 6,000.00

Maintenance For 121 $5,000.00 500.00 5,500.00
MAINTENANCE FOR 122 $5,000.00 2,000.00 7,000.00

Maintenace for 180 3,000.00 3,000.00
Maintenance For 190 $1,700.00 3,300.00 5,000.00

FIRE SIMULATOR EXPENSES $2,700.00 10,300.00 13,000.00
Fire Fighter Training $5,200.00 (1,000.00) 4,200.00

Planning Commission
Contracted Services 100.00 100.00

Printing & Publishing 10,000.00 10,000.00
Miscellaneous $3,000.00 (2,000.00) 1,000.00

Planning & Zoning
Contracted Services $42,000.00 30,000.00 72,000.00

Miscellaneous $200.00 90,000.00 90,200.00
Highway M-45

Insurance $7,000.00 310.00 7,310.00
Gas & Oil $2,000.00 (310.00) 1,690.00

Community Promotions: Independence Day
Supplies $1,000.00 (1,000.00) 0.00

Contracted Services $15,000.00 (15,000.00) 0.00
Printing & Publishing $3,000.00 (3,000.00) 0.00

Community Promotions: Concerts/Movies in the Park
Supplies $100.00 400.00 500.00

Community Promotions: Administration
Salaries 21,000.00 21,000.00

Employers Fica 1,700.00 1,700.00
EMPLOYER'S 401(A) 1,300.00 1,300.00

Recreation & Parks
Supplies $2,000.00 (1,000.00) 1,000.00

Maintenance $5,000.00 3,000.00 8,000.00
Capital Outlay $5,000.00 (5,000.00) 0.00

Library
Salaries $237,510.00 (3,141.00) 234,369.00

Insurance $4,000.00 59.00 4,059.00
Dues $300.00 415.00 715.00

Heating Fuel $2,500.00 500.00 3,000.00
Miscellaneous $5,000.00 500.00 5,500.00
Capital Outlay 1,603.00 1,603.00

Lifelong Learners
Contracted Services $12,000.00 (7,000.00) 5,000.00

Hospital Reimbursement
Employers Health Insurance $160,000.00 15,000.00 175,000.00

TOTAL EXPENDITURES: 440,844.00 51,778.00
Revenue Over/(Under) Expenditures (440,844.00) 64,218.00

SUMMARY BY DEPARTMENT Expenditures Revenues Expenditures Revenues
Township Board $0.00 $0.00

Supervisor ($3,842.60) ($3,842.60)
Elections ($36,000.00) ($36,000.00)

Audit ($3,000.00) ($3,000.00)
Assessor ($63,378.00) ($63,378.00)

Clerk $500.00 $500.00
General Office $45,686.60 $45,686.60

Buildings & Grounds $398,620.00 ($380.00)
Cemetery $0.00 $0.00

With Fire Station Excluding Fire Station



Fire Department $15,600.00 $15,600.00
Planning Commission $8,100.00 $8,100.00

Planning & Zoning $120,000.00 $120,000.00
Highway M-45 $0.00 $0.00

Community Promotions: Independence Day ($19,000.00) ($19,000.00)
Community Promotions: Concerts/Movies in the Park $400.00 $400.00

Community Promotions: Administration $24,000.00 $24,000.00
Recreation & Parks ($3,000.00) ($3,000.00)

Library ($64.00) ($64.00)
Lifelong Learners ($7,000.00) ($7,000.00)

Hospital Reimbursement $15,000.00 $15,000.00
TOTAL ALL: 492,622.00 $115,996.00 $93,622.00 115,996.00

Planned Surplus
Net Impact on Fund Balance:

Description

Other

Approved/Denied?

(350,035.00) $48,965.00
26,591.00 26,591.00

Projeceted Year End Fund Balance (Jan. 1, 2021):

Projeceted Year End Fund Balance (Current): 

Projeceted Year End Fund Balance (After this Amendment): 

 $   4,058,934.00 

 $   3,618,090.00 

 $   3,682,308.00 



Fund Name: Public Utilities Fund Date:
Department Number: N/A Budget Entry #:

Department Name: N/A Amendment #:
Requested by:

Original Budget Prior Amendments This Amendment Revised Budget
Inspections $5,000.00 $5,000.00

Misc. Income $2,000.00 $79,000.00 $81,000.00
Water-Meter Charges $35,000.00 $35,000.00

Utility Charges $2,535,750.00 $264,250.00 $2,800,000.00
Water-Service Laterals $0.00
Water-Hydrant Usage $4,500.00 $4,500.00

Robinson Twp Hydrant Rentals $450.00 $450.00
Interest $0.00

Rental-Water Tank-Omnipoint $15,000.00 $15,000.00
CAPITAL CONTRIB-DDA $0.00

Sale Of Assets $0.00
DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTIONS $0.00

Equipment Replacement Transfer $0.00
TOTAL REVENUES: $2,597,700.00 $0.00 $343,250.00 $2,940,950.00

EXPENDITURES:
Salaries $361,591.00 $361,591.00

Life Insurance - Employer $250.00 $250.00
Disability Insurance $1,000.00 $1,000.00

Workmans Comp - Employer $10,000.00 $10,000.00
In Lieu Of Health Insurance $2,900.00 $2,900.00

Employers Fica $27,662.00 $27,662.00
EMPLOYER'S 401(A) $19,087.00 $19,087.00

Hospital Reimb. Besteman $0.00
Hospital Reimb. Boss $0.00

Hospital Reimb. Scholten $0.00
Hospital Reimb. Doornbos $0.00

Hospital Reimb. Vanderjagt $0.00
Hospital Reimb. Currier $0.00

Hospital Reimb. VenHuizen $0.00
INSURANCE DEDUCTABLE $0.00

Employers Health Insurance $60,000.00 $60,000.00
HSA Contribution $0.00

Birth Control $0.00
EMPLOYEE HEALTH ASSISTANCE PROGRAM $7,500.00 $7,500.00

ASSISTANCE - BESTEMAN $0.00
ASSISTANCE - BOSS $0.00

ASSISTANCE - SCHOLTEN $0.00
ASSISTANCE - DOORNBOS $0.00

ASSISTANCE - VANDERJAGT $0.00
ASSISTANCE - CURRIER $0.00
ASSISTANCE - BRISTOL $0.00

UNEMPLOYMENT $0.00
SUPPLIES-MISC $20,000.00 $20,000.00

OFFICE SUPPLIES $2,000.00 $2,000.00
Service Laterals $0.00

Service Laterals - Parts $2,600.00 $2,600.00
Meter Cost $145,000.00 $145,000.00

Contracted Services $27,000.00 $27,000.00
Professional Services $100,000.00 $100,000.00

Public Water System Fee $6,500.00 $6,500.00
G.R. Water Service Charges $0.00

BACKFLOW INSPECTIONS $0.00
BACKFLOW CONTAINMENT $0.00

Water Cost $1,130,127.00 $1,130,127.00
Insurance $13,500.00 $13,500.00
Seminars $5,500.00 $5,500.00

Dues $4,250.00 $4,250.00
Mileage $150.00 $150.00

Water Usage $3,250.00 $3,250.00
Electricity $52,500.00 $52,500.00

Telephone $4,200.00 $4,200.00
Heating Fuel $600.00 $600.00

Heat - Metering Station $5,500.00 $5,500.00
Maintenance $153,000.00 $153,000.00

Gas & Oil $7,400.00 $7,400.00
Copier Maintenance $0.00
Truck Maintenance $5,000.00 $5,000.00

Equipment Replacement $13,000.00 $13,000.00
Metering Station - County $0.00

Rentals & Contract $0.00
Miscellaneous $4,100.00 $4,100.00

Contingency $0.00
New Equipment $10,500.00 $10,500.00

Safety Equipment $3,500.00 $3,500.00
Capital Outlay $182,146.00 $182,146.00

CAPITAL ASSETS COSTS CAPITALIZED $0.00
Transfer Out $0.00

TOTAL EXPENDITURES: $2,204,967.00 $0.00 $186,346.00 $2,391,313.00
Revenue Over/(Under) Expenditures $0.00 $156,904.00

Description

Other

Approved/Denied?

Budget Amendment Request

Water



Original Budget Prior Amendments This Amendment Revised Budget
STATE GRANTS $0.00

Inspections $5,000.00 ($4,000.00) $1,000.00
Misc. Income $1,500.00 $1,500.00

Utility Charges $2,039,670.00 $2,039,670.00
Sewer Charges - Leprino $100,860.00 $100,860.00

Sewer Laterals $0.00
Interest $0.00

CAPITAL CONTRIB-DDA $0.00
Sale Of Assets $0.00

REAL PROPERTY SOLD-PRINCIPAL $0.00
REAL PROPERTY SOLD-INTEREST $0.00

DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTIONS $0.00
Contributions-Treatmt Plnt Exp $0.00

Equipment Replacement Transfer $0.00
TOTAL REVENUES: $2,147,030.00 $0.00 ($4,000.00) $2,143,030.00

EXPENDITURES:
Salaries $387,572.00 $387,572.00

Life Insurance - Employer $225.00 $225.00
Disability Insurance $1,000.00 $1,000.00

Workmans Comp - Employer $8,000.00 $8,000.00
In Lieu Of Health Insurance $2,900.00 $2,900.00

Employers Fica $29,650.00 $29,650.00
EMPLOYER'S 401(A) $19,087.00 $19,087.00

Hospital Reimb. Besteman $0.00
Hospital Reimb. Boss $0.00

Hospital Reimb. Scholten $0.00
Hospital Reimb. Doornbos $0.00

Hospital Reimb. Vanderjagt $0.00
Hospital Reimb. Currier $0.00

Hospital Reimb. VenHuizen $0.00
INSURANCE DEDUCTABLE $0.00

Employers Health Insurance $60,000.00 $60,000.00
HSA Contribution $0.00

Birth Control $0.00
EMPLOYEE HEALTH ASSISTANCE PROGRAM $5,000.00 $5,000.00

ASSISTANCE - BESTEMAN $0.00
ASSISTANCE - BOSS $0.00

ASSISTANCE - SCHOLTEN $0.00
ASSISTANCE - DOORNBOS $0.00

ASSISTANCE - VANDERJAGT $0.00
ASSISTANCE - CURRIER $0.00
ASSISTANCE - BRISTOL $0.00

UNEMPLOYMENT $0.00
SUPPLIES-MISC $24,000.00 $24,000.00

LAB SUPPLIES $37,000.00 $37,000.00
OFFICE SUPPLIES $2,000.00 $2,000.00

Service Laterals $0.00
Chemicals $86,000.00 $86,000.00

Contracted Services $15,000.00 $1,000.00 $16,000.00
Professional Services $130,000.00 $130,000.00

SAW GRANT EXPENSES $0.00
SEWER POND CLEANING $265,000.00 $265,000.00

Discharge Permit $0.00
NPDES Discharge Permit & Expenses $5,800.00 $1,506.00 $7,306.00

Mercury Program Costs $0.00
Insurance $13,000.00 $13,000.00
Seminars $8,000.00 $8,000.00

Dues $4,000.00 $4,000.00
Mileage $150.00 $150.00

Water Usage $30,000.00 $2,000.00 $32,000.00
Electricity $96,000.00 $96,000.00

Telephone $12,500.00 $12,500.00
Heating Fuel $17,000.00 $17,000.00

Trash $2,750.00 $2,750.00
Sludge Removal $0.00

GENERAL MAINTENANCE $50,000.00 $50,000.00
WRRF MAINTENANCE $75,000.00 $75,000.00

SANITARY SEWER CLEANING/INSPECTION $75,000.00 $75,000.00
COLLECTION SYSTEM MAINTENANCE $220,000.00 $30,000.00 $250,000.00

Gas & Oil $7,600.00 $7,600.00
Copier Maintenance $0.00
Truck Maintenance $5,000.00 $5,000.00

Equipment Replacement $5,000.00 $5,000.00
Miscellaneous $0.00

Contingency $0.00
New Equipment $23,500.00 $23,500.00

Safety Equipment $3,500.00 $3,500.00
Sludge tank equipment $0.00

Capital Outlay $30,000.00 $30,000.00
WWTP EXPANSION PHASE 1 $0.00
WWTP EXPANSION PHASE 2 $0.00

CAPITAL ASSETS COSTS CAPITALIZED $0.00
CAPITAL TRANSFER OUT $0.00
TOTAL EXPENDITURES: $1,725,234.00 $0.00 $65,506.00 $1,790,740.00

Revenue Over/(Under) Expenditures $0.00 ($69,506.00)

Description

Other

Approved/Denied?

Sewer



Original Budget Prior Amendments This Amendment Revised Budget
Misc. Income $0.00

Chg For Site Plan Review & Field Testing $0.00
Construction Requirement Books $0.00

Connection Regis. Fee $200.00 $200.00
CONNECTIONS FEES (WATER) $90,000.00 $85,000.00 $175,000.00
CONNECTIONS FEES (SEWER) $120,000.00 $130,000.00 $250,000.00

Penalties $15,000.00 $15,000.00
Interest $32,000.00 $32,000.00

INTEREST ON LAND CONTRACT $0.00
Interest On Assessments $9,000.00 $9,000.00

CONNECTIONS FINANCED (WATER) $10,000.00 $10,000.00
CONNECTIONS FINANCED (SEWER) $25,000.00 $25,000.00

WS Debt Reduction Assessment-Allendale $0.00
Transfer In $0.00

TOTAL REVENUES: $301,200.00 $0.00 $215,000.00 $516,200.00

EXPENDITURES:
Salaries $0.00

Life Insurance - Employer $0.00
Disability Insurance $0.00

Workmans Comp - Employer $0.00
In Lieu Of Health Insurance $0.00

Employers Fica $0.00
EMPLOYER'S 401(A) $0.00

Hospital Reimb. Alkema $0.00
Employers Health Insurance $0.00

HSA Contribution $0.00
EMPLOYEE HEALTH ASSISTANCE PROGRAM $0.00

ASSISTANCE - ALKEMA $0.00
Postage $6,750.00 $750.00 $7,500.00
Supplies $1,000.00 $1,000.00

Administration Reimbursed $146,348.00 $146,348.00
Contracted Services $0.00

COUNTY CONN. REGIS. FEE $90.00 $90.00
Audit $11,000.00 $11,000.00

Seminars $0.00
Mileage $0.00

Printing & Publishing $1,000.00 $1,000.00
Cell Phone $0.00

COMPUTER CONTRACTED SERVICES $11,000.00 $4,500.00 $15,500.00
Equipment Replacement $0.00

Rentals & Contract $0.00
Miscellaneous $1,600.00 $1,600.00

Contingency $0.00
Safety Training And Materials $5,250.00 $5,250.00

LOSS ON DISPOSAL OF ASSETS $0.00
Capital Outlay $0.00

Agent Fees $0.00
Interest Paid $0.00

Bond Payment $0.00
Transfer Out $0.00

TOTAL EXPENDITURES: $183,948.00 $0.00 $5,340.00 $189,288.00
Revenue Over/(Under) Expenditures $0.00 $209,660.00

Description

Other

Approved/Denied?

Administration



llendale 
CHARTER TOWNSHIP 

"Where community is more than just a concept!" 
Assistant Township Administrator- Kevin Yeomans 

Board of Trustees: 

At our recent board meetings we discussed and approved the job description for the role of 

Assistant Township Administrator. Additionally, we have discussed the transition of Kevin Yeoman's 

existing role from an hourly employee to a salaried employee. I am bringing these two subjects together 

to make the following recommendations to the Board of Trustees with a request for your approval: 

1. To update the position title currently held by Kevin Yeomans from Project Coordinator to 

Assistant Township Administrator. This update addresses many needs we have in our

growing township, and creates additional bandwidth to better provide our residents with 

the level of service they expect and deserve. Additionally, it better encompasses the job

duties that Mr. Yeomans has already started to fill within his current position. 

2. To approve the promotion of Kevin Yeomans to the position of Assistant Township

Administrator. Mr. Yeomans has already begun to fulfill the duties listed in the new job

description. He has played a key role in capital improvement planning and in the budget

process while continuing to play a critical role in managing projects for the Township.

With the experience Mr. Yeomans brings to the Township, and the value that he has already 

added during the past year and half of his employment, we recommend an annual salary of $66,687.92, 

effective September 13, 2021. Given the close proximity of annual reviews, Mr. Yeomans' 2021 year-end 

review process will not encompass a wage adjustment, as this promotion satisfies that segment of the 

annual review process. We look forward to the leadership, value, and level of service that Mr. Yeomans 

will continue to bring to our organization and community. 

Sincerely, 

Adam Elenbaas 

Allendale Township Supervisor 

6676 Lake Michigan Drive I P.O. Box 539 I Allendale Ml 49401 
Phone: 616-895-6295 Fax: 616-895-6670 or 616-895-6330 

www. al/endale-twp. org 



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Human Resource Director- Lydale Weaver 
 
Board of Trustees: 

 

An internal assessment regarding the job duties for the Human Resource Manager position was 

conducted; including the job performance of Lydale Weaver, Human Resource Specialist. After careful 

evaluation, approval for the following recommendations are being requested: 

1. To update the position title from Human Resource Manager to Human Resource Director. 

This adjustment will help relate the job title with the expected job duties and will create job 

title continuity within our organization.  

2. To approve the promotion of Lydale Weaver from Human Resource Specialist to Human 

Resource Director. Mr. Weaver has been fulfilling many of the job responsibilities of the 

Human Resource Director for numerous months including: employee relations, strategic 

planning, ensuring legal obligation adherence and compliance, a multitude of recruiting 

processes, onboarding responsibilities, payroll and compensation management, overseeing 

personnel records and HRIS Administration duties, and training and development.   

With his internal experience and growth as the Human Resource Specialist, his 20 years of 

expertise in the profession of HR, and his genuine passion for providing exceptional service to our team 

members, candidates, and community members, we recommend an annual salary of $67,059.20, 

effective September 13, 2021. Given the close proximity of annual reviews, Mr. Weaver’s 2021 year-end 

review process will not encompass a wage adjustment, as this promotion satisfies that segment of the 

annual review process.  We look forward to the leadership and the outstanding HR development 

strategies and service that Mr. Weaver will continue to bring to our organization. 

 

Sincerely,  

 

Jody Hansen 

Allendale Township Clerk 





ALLENDALE CHARTER TOWNSHIP 

Position:                              Assessor Administrator with MAAO License 

Immediate Supervisor:     Head Assessor / Township Supervisor 

The following information is intended to describe the general nature and level of work to be 
performed by people assigned to this classification.  This is not constructed to be an exhaustive 
list of all job duties performed by personnel so classified. Grade A7. 

Essential Functions: 

• Oversee and make decisions in regards to day to day operations and functions of the 
department when the Head Assessor is out of the office 

o Work independently with limited supervision on day to day operations 
o Communicate and work with the County and State on various projects 
o Research, report and advise the Head Assessor on matters relating to property 

appraisals and assessments 
• Oversee, direct and participate in appraisal of Residential / Agricultural / Commercial / 

Industrial / Personal properties. 
o Maintain a current record of real property within the township 
o Monitor real estate transactions, conduct sales studies and monitor building 

construction to determine trends in property values; supervise and participate in 
the appraisal of new or remodeled residential, commercial and industrial 
buildings; inspect buildings; evaluate specifications 

o Supervise and conduct periodic field inspections of property to locate 
unrecorded changes and reappraise as needed 

o Help review and prepare for MTT and Small Claims court cases 
• Participate in the compilation of township assessment rolls 
• Conduct field inspections and appraisals of new construction and modifications of 

existing commercial and industrial properties 
• Meet with the property owners regarding assessment determination, answer questions, 

respond to complaints and explain appeal procedures 
• Participate preparing the materials for the Board of Review, and presenting the 

information as needed 
• Attend meetings as requested by the Head Assessor and Supervisor 

 

Knowledge/Skill Requirements: 

• Knowledge of professional principles and techniques of real and personal property 
appraisal is necessary, as well as knowledge of laws, regulations and rules governing the 
assessment of real and personal property in the State of Michigan 



• Thorough knowledge of local government finance and property tax administration in 
Michigan, the Michigan General Property Tax Act as amended and related statutes, the 
Michigan tax calendar, assessment administration and public relations, equalization, 
real property descriptions, and vacant land valuation. 

• Ability to prepare and present coherent, accurate testimony before the Board of 
Review, Michigan Tax Tribunal, court of Law or other official commission concerning real 
and personal property appraisal. 

• Considerable knowledge of the use of personal computers and related software. 
• Good oral and written communication skills 
• This position requires providing advice, conflict resolution, problem solving and 

communication as a representative of the Township 
• Ability to interact positively and professionally with property owners, accountants, 

third-party tax preparers, community and business representatives, real estate 
professionals, local assessors, other local government employees and members of the 
general public from a wide range of cultural and socio-economic backgrounds. 

• Oversee and complete all Residential Re-appraisals and meeting the recommended 20% 
visits by the State annually 

• Oversee and input all PRE, PTA’s, RPRE, and Personal Property forms received by the 
Township.  

• Aid in the completion of the State of Michigan’s Audit of Minimum Assessing 
Requirements (AMAR) required every 5 years 
 

Physical Requirements: 

• Must possess sufficient mobility with or without assistive devices to access all-natural 
features, structures and/or improvements on developed and undeveloped agricultural, 
residential, commercial, industrial and timber cutover parcels being appraised. 

• Must have sufficient mobility with or without assistive devices to access all features of 
structures located on parcels being appraised. 

• Must have sufficient visual acuity with or without corrective lenses to visually inspect 
property being appraised.  

• Must be able to descend to and ascend from ground/floor level to take measurements 
and to inspect soil and geological land features; building foundations and other 
structural features, and other features of land and structures being appraised.  

• Must be able to tolerate exposure to inclement weather conditions. 
• Must be able to access and move tax rolls, maps and other items weighing up to 25 lbs. 

 

 



 

 

Required Training, Education and experiences 

• Must have a minimum of three years of progressively responsible experience as a local 
unit assessor or assistant assessor with a municipality/local government.  Bachelor’s 
degree in Business or Public Administration, Finance, Accounting, Management, or 
similar degree, or possession of state certified Real Estate Appraiser Designation form 
the State Board of Real Estate Appraisers is strongly preferred.  
 

Required Certifications and Licenses: 

• Must possess and maintain certification as a Michigan Advanced Assessing officer by the 
Michigan State Tax Commission. 

• Valid Michigan Driver’s License 

 
Additional Information: 
 
Allendale Charter Township is an “at-will,” equal opportunity employer. If a job offer is made, 
employment may be contingent upon the successful completion and passage of a medical 
examination and other appropriate background checks, which may include providing body 
substance (blood, urine and/or hair) samples. We consider applicants for all positions without 
regard to race, color, creed, religion, national origin or ancestry, sex, age, disability, genetic 
information, veteran status, or any other legally protected status under local, state, or federal 
law. 
 

Updated 9-9-2021 



ALLENDALE CHARTER TOWNSHIP 

Position:                              Assistant Assessor with MCAO or MCAT License  

Immediate Supervisor:     Assessor 

The following information is intended to describe the general nature and level of work to be 
performed by people assigned to this classification.  This is not constructed to be an exhaustive 
list of all job duties performed by personnel so classified. 

Essential Functions: 

• Conduct field inspections of new construction and modifications of existing residential 
properties to collect data to assist in the appraisal of properties 

• Meet with the property owners regarding assessment determination, answer questions, 
respond to complaints and explain appeal procedures 

• Maintain residential property files 
• Draw floor plans on assessing records 
• Maintain and update homestead affidavit files 
• Perform maintenance and annual computation of personal property files 
• Identify properties and land values that need additional documentation or updated 

price structures 
• Review documents, records and computer input and output data to identify errors and 

make corrections 
• Access and update assessment data, generate various related reports and data 

spreadsheets, including drawing floor plans 
• Maintain files for the Board of Review 
• Maintain deed files and transfer affidavit files 
• Assist with the maintenance of property cards 
• Prepare mailings, publications, notices, etc 
• Attend meetings as requested by the Head Assessor or Supervisor 

 

Knowledge/Skill Requirements: 

• An MCAT or MCAO level assessing license is required for this position 
• Knowledge of procedures and practices for the compilation and processing of regular 

and special assessment roles 
• This position requires logic, intuition, analysis, judgement, research and organizational 

skills 
• Working knowledge of blueprints preferred 
• Considerable knowledge of the use of personal computers and related software. 
• Good oral and written communication skills 



• This position requires providing advice, conflict resolution, problem solving and 
communication as a representative of the Township 

• Ability to interact positively and professionally with property owners, accountants, 
third-party tax preparers, community and business representatives, real estate 
professionals, local assessors, other local government employees and members of the 
general public from a wide range of cultural and socio-economic backgrounds. 

• Ability to oversee and supervise all Residential Re-appraisals and meeting the 
recommended 20% visits by the State.  

• Ability to oversee and input all PRE, PTA’s, RPRE, and Personal Property forms received 
by the Township.  

• Ability to work outdoors, walk and stand throughout the majority of the work day 
• Ability to work in an office environment 
• The position requires research and organizational skills 
• Valid driver’s license, clean driving record and ability to pass a background check and 

drug screen 
 

Physical Requirements: 

• Must possess sufficient mobility with or without assistive devices to access all-natural 
features, structures and/or improvements on developed and undeveloped agricultural, 
residential, commercial, industrial and timber cutover parcels being appraised. 

• Must have sufficient mobility with or without assistive devices to access all features of 
structures located on parcels being appraised. 

• Must have sufficient visual acuity with or without corrective lenses to visually inspect 
property being appraised.  

• Must be able to descend to and ascend from ground/floor level to take measurements 
and to inspect soil and geological land features; building foundations and other 
structural features, and other features of land and structures being appraised.  

• Must be able to tolerate exposure to inclement weather conditions. 
• Must be able to access and move tax rolls, maps and other items weighing up to 25 lbs. 

 

Required Certifications and Licenses: 

• MCAT or MCAO Assessing License preferred 
• Valid Michigan Driver’s License 

 
 
 
 



 
Additional Information: 
 
Allendale Charter Township is an “at-will,” equal opportunity employer. If a job offer is made, 
employment may be contingent upon the successful completion and passage of a medical 
examination and other appropriate background checks, which may include providing body 
substance (blood, urine and/or hair) samples. We consider applicants for all positions without 
regard to race, color, creed, religion, national origin or ancestry, sex, age, disability, genetic 
information, veteran status, or any other legally protected status under local, state, or federal 
law. 
 

Updated 1-21-2020 



Fund Name: General Fund Date:
Department Number: 248 Budget Entry #:

Department Name: General Office Amendment #:
Requested by:

Original Budget Prior Amendments This Amendment Revised Budget
Transfer In

TOTAL REVENUES: $0.00

EXPENDITURES:
Salaries $125,969.00 $4,100.00 $10,500.00 $140,395.00

Employers Fica $9,637.00 $1,200.00 $10,740.00
EMPLOYER'S 401(A) $7,558.00 $1,000.00 $8,424.00

Postage $10,000.00 $10,000.00
Supplies $5,500.00 $5,500.00

Contracted Services $13,000.00 $3,000.00 $16,000.00
Seminars $3,200.00 $3,200.00

Dues $10,000.00 $10,000.00
CELL PHONE $500.00 $500.00

Maintenance $0.00
COMPUTER CONTRACTED SERVICES $45,000.00 $41,844.00 $86,844.00

Computer Replacement $1,800.00 $1,800.00
Miscellaneous $5,000.00 ($3,257.40) $1,742.60

Safety Training And Materials $3,000.00 $3,000.00
Capital Outlay $1,800.00 $1,800.00

TOTAL EXPENDITURES: $241,964.00 $45,686.60 $10,800.00 $298,450.60

Revenue Over/(Under) Expenditures ($241,964.00) ($298,450.60)

Transfers in from other funds:
Transfers out to other funds:

TOTAL ALL:

Description

Other

Approved/Denied?

Budget Amendment Request

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES AND USES:



Fund Name: General Fund Date:
Department Number: 209 Budget Entry #:

Department Name: Assessing Amendment #:
Requested by:

Original Budget Prior Amendments This Amendment Revised Budget
Transfer In

TOTAL REVENUES: $0.00

EXPENDITURES:
Salaries $156,439.00 ($6,000.00) $150,439.00

Employers Fica $11,968.00 $11,968.00
EMPLOYER'S 401(A) $9,386.00 $9,386.00

Supplies $200.00 $200.00
Contracted Services $80,000.00 ($60,000.00) $20,000.00

Seminars $4,000.00 $4,000.00
Dues $1,200.00 ($510.00) $690.00

Mileage $1,500.00 $1,500.00
MPUTER CONTRACTED SERVICES $7,000.00 ($2,868.00) $4,132.00

Miscellaneous $2,500.00 $2,500.00
Capital Outlay $500.00 $500.00

TOTAL EXPENDITURES: $274,693.00 ($63,378.00) ($6,000.00) $205,315.00
Revenue Over/(Under) 

Expenditures ($274,693.00) ($205,315.00)

Transfers in from other funds:
Transfers out to other funds:

TOTAL ALL:

Description

Other

Approved/Denied?

Budget Amendment Request

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES AND USES:



ALLENDALE CHARTER TOWNSHIP 

ORDINANCE NO. 2021 - _______ 

RENTAL HOUSING REGISTRATION AMENDMENT ORDINANCE  

AN ORDINANCE to amend Ordinance No. 2017-4, which provides for the 
registration and regulation of rental housing located within the Charter 
Township of Allendale; to allow inspections; to provide penalties for 
violations; to repeal conflicting ordinances; and to provide for the effective 
date of this Ordinance.  

THE CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF ALLENDALE, COUNTY OF OTTAWA, MICHIGAN 
ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1.  Amendment of Ordinance No. 2017-4.  The following provisions of the 
rental housing registration ordinance adopted by Allendale Charter Township, Ordinance No. 
2017-4, shall be amended as follows: 

A. Amendment of Section 3:  Section 3(b)(2) shall be amended to state in its entirety 
as follows: 

 
(2)  An Owner shall apply for a new certificate of compliance for the Rental 

Unit prior to the current certificate of compliance expiration.  If the Owner 
fails to obtain a new certificate of compliance for the Rental Unit before the 
current certificate of compliance expires, the Rental Unit will need to be re-
inspected before a new certificate of compliance can be issued.  

 
B. Amendment of Section 4:  Section 4(b) shall be amended to state in its entirety as 

follows: 
 

(b)  Inspection Procedures.  
 
(1)  An inspection shall be valid for a period of up to four years, unless there is 

a sufficient basis for re-inspection pursuant to this Ordinance or if the 
certificate of compliance is revoked by the Township for noncompliance 
with this Ordinance.  

 
(2)  If, upon completion of an inspection, the Rental Unit or surrounding 

Premises are found to be in violation of a Township ordinance or applicable 
State law, the Township shall provide the Owner with written notice of such 
violations. The Township shall set a re inspection date before which such 
violation shall be corrected.  

 
(3)  If a complaint is filed with the Township regarding a Rental Unit, the Owner 

will be notified. An inspection will ensue if the Township believes such 



action is necessary. The Township may also choose to accept written 
verification that the violation has been corrected. 

 
(4)  Where a re-inspection must be made to ensure conformity with this 

Ordinance, the Township may charge a separate inspection fee for each 
subsequent inspection. 

 
(5)  If an inspection is scheduled and the Owner fails to appear, an inspection 

fee shall be assessed against the Owner. 
 
(6)  The Owner or Tenants shall provide any information as requested by the 

Township to assist with the investigation of a potential violation of this 
Ordinance.  

Section 2.  Severability and Captions.  

This Ordinance and the various parts, sections, subsections, sentences, phrases, and clauses 
thereof are hereby declared to be severable. If any part, section, subsection, sentence, phrase, or 
clause is adjudged unconstitutional or invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remainder 
of the Ordinance shall not be affected thereby. The captions included at the beginning of each 
section are for convenience only and shall not be considered a part of this Ordinance.  

Section 3.  Repeal.  

All resolutions, ordinances, orders or parts thereof in conflict in whole or in part with any 
of the provisions of this Ordinance are, to the extent of such conflict, hereby repealed.  

Section 4.  Administrative Liability.  

No officer, agent, employee or member of the Township shall render himself or herself 
personally liable for any damage that may occur to any person or entity as a result of any act or 
decision performed in the discharge of his or her duties and responsibilities pursuant to this 
Ordinance.  

Section 5.  Effective Date.  

This Ordinance was approved and adopted by the Township Board of Allendale Charter 
Township, Ottawa County, Michigan, on _________________, 2021, after introduction and a first 
reading on ___________________, 2021, and publication after first reading as required by Act 
359 of the Michigan Public Acts of 1947, as amended. This Ordinance shall be effective 
immediately upon publication on ____________________, 2021, in The Ottawa Advance, a 
newspaper having general circulation in the Township.  

 
___________________________________  ____________________________________ 
Adam Elenbaas, Township Supervisor   Jody L. Hansen, Township Clerk  
 
 



CERTIFICATE 

 
 I, Jody Hansen, the Clerk for the Charter Township of Allendale, Ottawa County, 

Michigan, certify that the foregoing Rental Housing Registration Amendment Ordinance was 

adopted at a regular meeting of the Township Board held on _____________________, 2021.  The 

following members of the Township Board were present at that meeting: 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________.  

The following members of the Township Board were absent: ___________________________ 

____________________________________________________________.  The Ordinance was 

adopted by the Township Board with members of the Board _____________________________ 

___________________________________________ voting in favor and members of the Board  

_______________________________________________ voting in opposition.  The Ordinance 

or a summary of the Ordinance was published in the _____________________________ on 

_____________, 2021.  A certified copy of the Ordinance was sent to the Ottawa County Clerk, 

by first-class mail with postage pre-paid on _______________, 2021. 

 
 
       _______________________________ 
       Jody Hansen, Clerk 
       Allendale Charter Township 
 



1 

EXCERPTS OF MINUTES 
 

At a regular meeting of the Township Board of the Charter Township of Allendale, Ottawa 
County, Michigan, held at the Township Hall at 6676 Lake Michigan Drive, Allendale Charter 
Township, Ottawa County, Michigan, on the ____ day of _____________, 2021, at 7:00 p.m., 
local time. 

 
PRESENT: ____________________________________________________________ 
 
  ____________________________________________________________ 
 
ABSENT: ____________________________________________________________ 
 
The Supervisor called the meeting to order. After certain matters of business were 

concluded, the Supervisor stated the next order of business of the meeting was the discussion of 
the Rental Housing Registration Fees. After completion of this discussion, the following 
Resolution was offered by ____________________________ and supported by 
____________________________: 

 
 RESOLUTION 2021- ______ 

RENTAL HOUSING REGISTRATION FEES 
 
WHEREAS, the Township Board adopted the Rental Housing Registration Ordinance No. 

2016-16 which was restated by Ordinance No. 2017-4 adopted on March 13, 2017, and amended 
by Ordinance No. 2021-____ adopted on ________________, 2021 (the “Ordinance”); and 

 
WHEREAS, the Ordinance provides that the Township is to establish the appropriate fees 

for registration and inspection of rental units by resolution of the Township Board; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Housing Law of Michigan, Act 167 of 1917, MCL 125.401 et seq., 
authorizes the Township to establish and charge reasonable fees for inspections and a $10 fee for 
a certificate of compliance; and 

 
WHEREAS, the following fees are established to offset the Township’s costs of 

registration and inspection for its rental housing program; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWNSHIP BOARD OF THE 
CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF ALLENDALE, OTTAWA COUNTY, MICHIGAN, AS 
FOLLOWS: 

 
1. That a $10 fee for a certificate of compliance shall be collected per rental unit prior 

to issuance of the certificate of compliance. 
 
2. That the following inspection fee schedule shall be implemented: 

 



2 

 Single-Family  
Rental Unit 

Two-Family 
Rental Unit 

Multi-Family 
Rental Unit 

 
Initial Inspection $125 $75 $75 
1st Re-inspection $0 $0 $0 
2nd Re-inspection $50 $50 $50 
Subsequent Inspections $50 $50 $50 

 
 3. That the cost for failing to present for a scheduled inspection or cancelling the 
scheduled inspection with less than 24 hours’ notice shall be $40. 
 
 4.  That all fees pursuant to this Resolution shall be collected by the owner of the rental 
unit, as defined in the Ordinance.  
 

5. That all resolutions in conflict with this Resolution are hereby revoked to the extent 
of such conflict. 

 
YES: _________________________________________________________________ 
 
NO: _________________________________________________________________ 

 
RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED. 
 
Dated: _____________, 2021   ____________________________________ 

Jody L. Hansen, Township Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



3 

CERTIFICATE 
 
I, the undersigned, the duly qualified and acting Township Clerk of the Charter Township 

of Allendale, Ottawa County, Michigan, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and complete 

copy of a Resolution adopted by the Township Board at a regular meeting of the Township Board 

held on the _____ day of ______, 2021.  I do further hereby certify that public notice of said 

meeting was given pursuant to and in full compliance with Michigan Act 267 of 1976, as amended, 

and that the minutes of said meeting were kept and will be or have been made available as required 

by said Act. 

 
____________________________________ 
Jody L. Hansen, Township Clerk 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


	8-23-2021 Proposed Minutes.pdf
	PROPOSED
	PROCEEDINGS OF THE ALLENDALE TOWNSHIP BOARD OF TRUSTEES
	AUGUST SESSION-2nd DAY

	ADPAC45.tmp
	Sheet1

	2021 Mid-Year Budget Amendments 20210908.pdf
	Allendale Historical Society Fund 2021 Mid Year Budget Amendment Request - Copy
	Sheet1

	Cemetery Improvement Fund 2021 Mid Year Budget Amendment Request
	Sheet1

	Rental Admin Fund 2021 Mid Year Budget Amendment Request
	Sheet1

	General Fund 2021 Mid Year Budget Amendment
	Sheet1

	Public Utilities Fund 2021 Mid Year Budget Amendment Request
	Sheet1

	ADP53E9.tmp
	Sheet1


	9 Budget Amendment Request Promotions Assessor.pdf
	Sheet1

	10 Budget Amendment Request Promtions General Office.pdf
	Sheet1




